
Emailed from CAC 8/12/2022         Page 1 

     California Avocado Commission 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Meeting Information 

Date: August 18, 2022 
Time: 9:00 a.m. 

Location: Hybrid Meeting 
 

Physical Meeting Location: 
California Avocado Commission 

12 Mauchly, Suite L 
Irvine, CA 92618 

Web/Teleconference URL: 
https://californiaavocado.zoom.us/j/89306764957?pwd=UnVla3BERFhLbUt2aldKbFpSVkM5UT09 

Conference Call Number: (669) 900-6833 
Meeting ID: 893 0676 4957 

Passcode: 028510  
 

Meeting materials will be posted online at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at: 
https://www.californiaavocadogrowers.com/commission/meeting-agendas-minutes 

Board Member Attendance 

As of Friday, August 12, 2022, the following individuals have advised the Commission they will 
participate in this meeting: 

Gary Caloroso, Member  
Will Carleton, Alternate 
Jason Cole, Member 
John Cornell, Member 
Maureen Cottingham, Alternate 
Rob Grether, Member 
Jessica Hunter, Member 
Connor Huser, Alternate 
Ohannes Karaoghlanian, Member 

Rachael Laenen, Member 
John Lloyd-Butler, Member 
Daniella Malfitano, Member 
Daryn Miller, Member 
Michael Perricone, Member 
Andrew Prechtl, Member 
Ryan Rochefort, Alternate 
Peter Shore, Member 
Charley Wolk, Alternate

https://californiaavocado.zoom.us/j/89306764957?pwd=UnVla3BERFhLbUt2aldKbFpSVkM5UT09
https://www.californiaavocadogrowers.com/commission/meeting-agendas-minutes


Emailed from CAC 8/12/2022         Page 2 

Time Item 

9:00 a.m. 1. Call to Order 
a. Roll Call/Quorum 

 2. Opportunity for Public Comment 
Any person may address the Board at this time on any subject within the 
jurisdiction of the California Avocado Commission. 

 3. Consent Calendar 
a. Consider approval of Board of Director’s meeting minutes of May 5, 

2022 
b. Consider approval of Board of Director’s meeting minutes of May 19, 

2022 
c. 2021-22 Financial and crop update 
d. Consider approval of Food Safety Manual, VERSION 5.0 (Complies 

with PrimusGFS V3.2) 

 4. Closed session regarding the appointment, employment, evaluation of 
performance, or dismissal of an employee pursuant to California 
Government Code Section 11126(a) 

a. The Board may go into closed session to discuss and make 
recommendations regarding appointment, employment or dismissal of 
an employee. 

b. Return to open session and announce action taken in closed session, if 
any. 

 5. Chairman’s Report 
a. Consider approval of delegation of authority 
b. Update on President & CEO Search 
c. Update on overall administration of the Commission 
d. Consider Recommendation of Public Member for Term Commencing 

November 1, 2022 

 6. Industry Affairs 
a. District member meetings with growers 
b. Avocado Brainstorming funding request 
c. World Avocado Congress 
d. South Coast Field Station land development plan 
e. Commission’s participation in avocado festivals 

 7. Marketing  
a. 2021-22 Consumer Marketing Program Review 

 8. Production Research 
a. Committee Meeting Summary 
b. Preliminary Budget for FY 2022-23 



Emailed from CAC 8/12/2022         Page 3 

Time Item 

 9. Treasurer’s Report and Financial Discussion 
a. 2022-23 Preliminary Budget and Assessment Rate 

1:00 p.m. 10. Adjourn Meeting 

Disclosures 

The times listed for each agenda item are estimated and subject to change.  It is possible that some of 
the agenda items may not be able to be discussed prior to adjournment.  Consequently, those items 
will be rescheduled to appear on a subsequent agenda. All meetings of the California Avocado 
Commission are open to the public and subject to the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act. 

All agenda items are subject to discussion and possible action.  For more information, or to make a 
request regarding a disability-related modification or accommodation for the meeting, please contact 
April Aymami at 949-341-1955, California Avocado Commission, 12 Mauchly, Suite L, Irvine, CA 
92618, or via email at aaymami@avocado.org. Requests for disability-related modification or 
accommodation for the meeting should be made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting time.  For 
individuals with sensory disabilities, this document is available in Braille, large print, audiocassette 
or computer disk.  This meeting schedule notice and agenda is available on the internet at 
https://www.californiaavocadogrowers.com/commission/meeting-agendas-minutes  and 
http://it.cdfa.ca.gov/igov/postings/detail.aspx?type=Notices. 

If you have questions on the above agenda, please contact April Aymami at aaymami@avocado.org 
or 949-341-1955. 

Summary Definition of Conflict of Interest 

It is each member’s and alternate’s responsibility to determine whether they have a conflict of interest 
and whether they should excuse themselves from a particular discussion or vote during a meeting.  
To assist you in this evaluation, the following Summary Definition of Conflict of Interest may be 
helpful. 

A Commission member or employee has a conflict of interest in a decision of the Commission if it is 
reasonably foreseeable that the decision will have a material effect, financial or otherwise, on the 
member or employee or a member of his or her immediate family that is distinguishable from its 
effect on all persons subject to the Commission’s jurisdiction. 

No Commission member or employee shall make, or participate in making, any decision in which he 
or she knows or should know he or she has a conflict of interest. 

No Commission member or employee shall, in any way, use his or her position to influence any 
decision in which he or she knows or should know he or she has a conflict of interest. 

mailto:aaymami@avocado.org
https://www.californiaavocadogrowers.com/commission/meeting-agendas-minutes
http://it.cdfa.ca.gov/igov/postings/detail.aspx?type=Notices
mailto:aaymami@avocado.org


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING, August 18, 2022 
 
 
 

Item 3.a-1 
 

 

BOARD ACTION 

 
ITEM 3.a: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING MINUTES 

OF MAY 5, 2022  
 

SUMMARY: 
 

The minutes of the Board of Directors’ regular meeting of May 5, 2022 are attached for the Board’s 
review and approval. 
 
FISCAL ANALYSIS:  
 

• Not applicable 
 
BOARD OPTIONS: 
 

• Adopt minutes as presented 
• Amend minutes 
• Take no action 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

• Approve minutes as presented 
 
EXHIBITS / ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Minutes of the Board of Directors’ regular meeting of May 5, 2022 
 

 
  

 



1 

CALIFORNIA AVOCADO COMMISSION 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

May 5, 2022 

A meeting of the California Avocado Commission (CAC) Board was held on Thursday, May 5, 2022, 
with the following people present: 

ITEM #1 CALL TO ORDER 
Roll Call/Quorum – Item 1.a. 
Rob Grether, CAC chairman, called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. with a quorum present. 

April Aymami, CAC industry affairs director, announced the California Department of Food and 
Agriculture (CDFA) and US Department of Agriculture (USDA) representatives, CAC staff and known 
guests participating in the meeting. She asked for all other guests to announce themselves and 
recorded all participants in attendance. 

ITEM # 2 OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT  
California grower, Rick Carey, addressed the Board stating, “CA growers face challenges. Please 
conduct a National search to bring in fresh leadership in an effort to reshape CAC to better serve needs 
in a more cost- efficient manner.” 

California grower, Eddie Grangetto, commented regarding the transition of new CAC leadership and the 
need to address core issues such as the return on investment of CAC assessment dollars and a 
Commission focused on representing the best interests of California growers. 

ITEM # 3 CLOSED SESSION REGARDING THE APPOINTMENT, EMPLOYMENT, EVALUATION 
PERFORMANCE, OR DISMISSAL OF AN EMPLOYEE PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 11126(a) 
Mr. Grether convened a Closed Session of board members, alternates, legal counsel, CDFA and USDA 
representatives, Jeff Hodge, John Lamb and Rick Shade at 9:13 a.m. 

MEMBERS PRESENT 
Gary Caloroso 
Jason Cole 
John Cornell 
Rob Grether 
Jessica Hunter 
Ohannes Karaoghlanian 
Rachael Laenen 
John Lloyd-Butler 
Daniella Malfitano 
Daryn Miller 
Michael Perricone 
Andrew Prechtl 
Peter Shore  

ALTERNATES PRESENT 
Will Carleton 
Maureen Cottingham 
Connor Huser 
Catherine Keeling 
Ryan Rochefort 
Charley Wolk 

MEMBERS ABSENT 
None 

ALTERNATES ABSENT 
None 

OFFICIALLY PRESENT 
Victoria Carpenter, USDA 
Jeff Hodge, Boyden 
Ben Kardokus, CDFA 
John Lamb, Succession 
Task Force 
Rick Shade, Succession 
Task Force 
George Soares, Kahn, 
Soares & Conway 

STAFF PRESENT 
Monica Arnett 
April Aymami 
Tom Bellamore 
Zac Benedict 
Dave Cruz 
Jan DeLyser 
Angela Fraser 
Stacia Kierulff 
Miriam Martinez 
Ken Melban 
Cristina Wede 

GUESTS PRESENT 
Rick Carey 
Eddie Grangetto 

Item 3.a-2



California Avocado Commission 
Board Meeting Minutes 
May 5, 2022 
 
 

ITEM # 4 RETURN TO OPEN SESSION AND ANNOUNCE ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION, 
IF ANY 
Mr. Grether returned to open session at 1:30 p.m. and announced that the board had taken action to 
extend an offer of employment to the President/CEO candidate recommended by the Succession Task 
Force. 
 
ADJOURN MEETING 
Mr. Grether adjourned the meeting at 1:32 p.m. The next regularly scheduled Board meeting will be 
held on May 19, 2022. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
___________________________ 
April Aymami, CAC Industry Affairs Director 
 
I certify that the above is a true statement of the Minutes of May 5, 2022 approved by the CAC Board of 
Directors on August 18, 2022.  
 
____________________________ 
Jessica Hunter, CAC Board Secretary 
 
EXHIBITS ATTACHED TO THE PERMANENT COPY OF THESE MINUTES 
None 

Item 3.a-3



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING, August 18, 2022 

Item 3.b-1 

BOARD ACTION 

ITEM 3.b: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING MINUTES 
OF MAY 19, 2022 

SUMMARY: 

The minutes of the Board of Directors’ regular meeting of May 19, 2022 are attached for the Board’s 
review and approval. 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

• Not applicable

BOARD OPTIONS: 

• Adopt minutes as presented
• Amend minutes
• Take no action

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

• Approve minutes as presented

EXHIBITS / ATTACHMENTS: 

• Minutes of the Board of Directors’ regular meeting of May 19, 2022



CALIFORNIA AVOCADO COMMISSION 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

May 19, 2022 

A meeting of the California Avocado Commission (CAC) Board was held on Thursday, May 19, 2022, 
with the following people present: 

ITEM #1 CALL TO ORDER 
Roll Call/Quorum – Item 1.a. 
Rob Grether, CAC chairman, called the meeting to order at 10:03 a.m. with a quorum present. 

April Aymami, CAC industry affairs director, announced the California Department of Food and 
Agriculture (CDFA) and US Department of Agriculture (USDA) representatives, CAC staff and known 
guests participating in the meeting. She asked for all other guests to announce themselves and 
recorded all participants in attendance. 

ITEM # 2 OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

ITEM # 3 CONSENT CALENDAR  
Mr. Grether introduced the consent calendar items and asked for questions or comments. With no 
comments on the consent calendar items, the following motion was put forward: 

MOTION: 
The CAC Board of Directors approves the Consent Calendar, Items 3.a through 3.f as 
presented.      
(Cornell/Cole) MSC Unanimous MOTION 22-5-19-1 

MEMBERS PRESENT 
Gary Caloroso 
Jason Cole 
John Cornell 
Rob Grether 
Jessica Hunter 
Ohannes Karaoghlanian 
Catherine Keeling (Laenen Alt.) 
John Lloyd-Butler 
Daniella Malfitano 
Daryn Miller 
Michael Perricone 
Andrew Prechtl 
Peter Shore  

ALTERNATES PRESENT 
Will Carleton 
Maureen Cottingham 
Connor Huser 
Ryan Rochefort 
Charley Wolk 

MEMBERS ABSENT 
Rachael Laenen 

ALTERNATES ABSENT 
None 

OFFICIALLY PRESENT 
Victoria Carpenter, USDA 
David Hillis, CDFA 
Jeff Hodge, Boyden 
Marji Morrow, Rockwell 
Morrow 
George Soares, Kahn, 
Soares & Conway 
Dr. Tim Spann, Spann Ag 
Research & Consulting 

STAFF PRESENT 
Monica Arnett 
April Aymami 
Tom Bellamore 
Zac Benedict 
Dave Cruz 
Jan DeLyser 
Angela Fraser 
Stacia Kierulff 
Miriam Martinez 
Ken Melban 
Cristina Wede 

GUESTS PRESENT 
Jennifer Ayvazian 
Carolyn Becker 
Emiliano Escobedo 
Brittany Ferrant 
Candace Hollar 
Robby Granatelli 
Lauren Jacobsen 
Kathleen Johnson 
Lauren Kelley 
Tyler Kirsch 
Kim Kurata 
John McGuigan 
Jillian McMenamin 
Steven Muro 
Jill Netzel 
Laura Paden 
Barb Peirce 
Bryan Reugebrink 
Erica Sanchez 
Sam Schaitberger 
Matt Schraut 

Item 3.b-2



California Avocado Commission 
Board Meeting Minutes 
May 19, 2022 
 
 

The Consent Calendar is included in the May 2022 Board Packet and is attached to the permanent 
copy of these Minutes and identified as EXHIBIT A, Items 3.a through 3.f.  
 
ITEM # 4.a CLOSED SESSION REGARDING THE APPOINTMENT, EMPLOYMENT, EVALUATION 
PERFORMANCE, OR DISMISSAL OF AN EMPLOYEE PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 11126(a) 
Mr. Grether convened a Closed Session of board members, alternates, legal counsel, and CDFA and 
USDA representatives at 10:13 a.m. 
 
ITEM #4.b RETURN TO OPEN SESSION AND ANNOUNCE ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION, 
IF ANY 
Mr. Grether returned to open session at 12:10 p.m. and announced that the board had taken action to 
accept CAC President Tom Bellamore’s resignation effective June 2, 2022. On behalf of the industry, 
he commended Mr. Bellamore’s leadership and tenure as CAC president. 
 
Mr. Bellamore thanked the Board for being an excellent employer over the past 28 years. He 
specifically recognized Charley Wolk for his strength, wisdom and sage advice provided to Mr. 
Bellamore during his tenure. 
 
Mr. Grether reported that no action had been taken regarding the ongoing President and CEO 
recruitment process. 
 
ITEM #7 MARKETING REPORT 
2022 IFPA Global Produce Show Update – Item 7.d. 
Angela Fraser, CAC director trade and legal affairs, provided an overview of the International Fresh 
Produce Association 2022 Global Produce & Floral Show scheduled to be held October 27-29, 2022, in 
Orlando, Florida. She provided an overview of the COVID-19 health and safety protocols as well as the 
event schedule, avocado-related exhibitors, expo floor plan, CAC booth layout and booth staffing. Ms. 
Fraser also reported that CAC had a block of rooms and limited supply of complimentary Expo Only 
passes. She stated that CAC board members would have priority status on distribution of passes and 
access to, at board member’s expense, CAC’s room block. 
  
The International Fresh Produce Association 2022 Global Produce & Floral Show presentation is 
attached to the permanent copy of these Minutes and identified as EXHIBIT B. 
 
ITEM #5 CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
Mr. Grether noted that he had nothing additional to report under the Chairman’s Report. 
 
ITEM #6 TREASURER’S REPORT 
Jason Cole, CAC treasurer, reported that the Finance Committee had met and reviewed CAC’s current 
financial status, cash disbursements, contracts and CAC Merch Shop financials. He noted that despite 
a decrease in estimated 2022 crop volume, the strong market pricing has offset any detrimental 
financial impact that CAC would have experienced due to the loss in volume. 
 
Consider Finance Committee Recommendation on Corporate Insurance – Item 6.a. 
Mr. Cole stated that the Finance Committee reviewed the schedule of corporate insurance policies 
prepared by staff, with counsel from CAC’s insurance broker, and recommended approval of the 
corporate insurance policies as presented. It was noted that the policies presented were the same as 
prior years, with the except of the Employed Lawyers Professional Liability policy, which would not be 
renewed. 
 
  

Item 3.b-3



California Avocado Commission 
Board Meeting Minutes 
May 19, 2022 
 
 

MOTION: 
Move to approve the CAC Corporate Insurance Schedule as presented. 
(Lloyd-Butler/Shore) MSC Unanimous          MOTION 22-5-19-2 
 
The CAC Corporate Insurance Schedule is included in the May 2022 Board Packet and is attached to 
the permanent copy of these Minutes and identified as EXHIBIT A, Item 6.a. 
 
ITEM #7 MARKETING REPORT (CONTINUED) 
Mr. Grether stated that due to time constraints, the consumer advertising, public relations and living 
well brand advocates reports would need to be postponed to a future meeting. Jan DeLyser, CAC vice 
president marketing, indicated that the presentations would be sent out to the Board following the 
meeting. 
 
Merch Shop Report – Item 7.e. 
Ms. DeLyser introduced Marji Morrow, who provided an in-depth report on the California Avocado 
Merchandise Shop financials, as well as overview of top-selling items and general observations. It was 
noted that the marketing department would be reviewing the Merch Shop performance as part of the 
2022-23 planning process and provide recommendations to the Board at a future meeting.  
  
The California Avocado Merchandise Shop report is attached to the permanent copy of these Minutes 
and identified as EXHIBIT C. 
 
ITEM #8 PRODUCTION RESEARCH REPORT 
Dr. Tim Spann reported the Production Research Committee had recently met to discuss project needs 
for the coming year. He noted that no action was taken, with discussion focused on the following: 
 

• CAC’s effort to advertise the need for industry reviewers for the USDA Specialty Crop Research 
Initiative proposal review process 

• Request for a three-year proposal from UCR on continued rootstock research 
• Expanding the avocado crop coefficient project to include northern growing regions 
• The need to move fungicides for Avocado Branch Canker treatment into the registration process 

for California 
• Request that an update be provided to PRC on Dr. Peggy Mauk’s herbicide work 
• UCR proposal submitted for federal funding on carbon footprint, including avocados, which 

could provide valuable information to CAC in completing a full life-cycle analysis in the future 
• Request that an Avocado Lace Bug update be provided to PRC to discuss the current status of 

research and whether additional funding is needed 
• Support to pursue a renewal of CAC’s leased acreage at Pine Tree Ranch, with suggestion to 

explore the option to expand the number of leased acres and the need to install a variable 
frequency drive to allow for more flexibility in irrigating CAC’s leased portion of the ranch 

 
There was brief Board discussion regarding the issue of sustainability and the Hass Avocado Board’s 
work in this area. It was noted that CAC was collaborating with HAB’s sustainability efforts. 
 
John Cornell, CAC District 2 member, stated that he had previously submitted a proposal on the use of 
overhead irrigation as a heat mitigation strategy for the PRC’s consideration. Dr. Spann requested that 
Mr. Cornell resubmit the proposal for the PRC’s review. 
 
Ken Melban, CAC vice president of industry affairs, reported that an Israeli plant pathology and weed 
researcher would be visiting California and for the next four months would be utilizing office space at 
the Commission. 
 

Item 3.b-4



California Avocado Commission 
Board Meeting Minutes 
May 19, 2022 
 
 

ADJOURN MEETING 
Mr. Grether adjourned the meeting at 1:00 p.m. The next regularly scheduled Board meeting will be 
held on August 19, 2022. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
___________________________ 
April Aymami, CAC Industry Affairs Director 
 
I certify that the above is a true statement of the Minutes of May 19, 2022 approved by the CAC Board 
of Directors on August 18, 2022.  
 
____________________________ 
Jessica Hunter, CAC Board Secretary 
 
EXHIBITS ATTACHED TO THE PERMANENT COPY OF THESE MINUTES 
EXHIBIT A May 2022 Board Packet 
EXHIBIT B International Fresh Produce Association 2022 Global Produce & Floral Show 

Presentation 
EXHIBIT C California Avocado Merchandise Shop Report  
EXHIBIT D May 19, 2022 Board Meeting AB 2720 Roll Call Vote Tally Summary 
 
  

Item 3.b-5



California Avocado Commission 
Board Meeting Minutes 
May 19, 2022 
 
 

 
CALIFORNIA AVOCADO COMMISSION 
AB 2720 Roll Call Vote Tally Summary 
To be attached to the Meeting Minutes 

 
Meeting Name: 
California Avocado 
Commission Regular 
Board Meeting 

Meeting Location: 
Hybrid 
In-person (Irvine) 
Online (Zoom)  

Meeting Date: 
May 19, 2022 

 
 Attendees Who Voted            MOTION 

22-5-19-1 
MOTION 
22-5-19-2 

Michael Perricone  Yea Yea 

Jessica Hunter Yea Yea 

Ohannes Karaoghlanian Yea Yea 

John Cornell Yea Yea 

Rob Grether Did Not 
Vote 

Did Not 
Vote 

John Lloyd-Butler Yea Yea 

Jason Cole Yea Yea 

Catherine Keeling Yea Yea 

Daryn Miller Yea Yea 

Andrew Prechtl Yea Yea 

Peter Shore  Yea Yea 

Gary Caloroso Yea Yea 

Daniella Malfitano Yea Yea 

Outcome        Unanimous Unanimous 

Exhibit D 

Item 3.b-6



Item 3.C-1 

  BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING, August 18, 2022 

ITEM 3.C: 2021-22 FINANCIAL & CROP UPDATE 

SUMMARY: 
Financial Position and Operational Indicators 
The following are highlights taken from the Commission’s Statement of Net Position (Balance Sheet & Reserves) 
as of June 30, 2022 and Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position (Income Statement) for 
the period then ended, with comparison to prior year’s figures: 

6/30/22 6/30/21 
Assets 

Petty Cash $200 $200 

Cash in Bank–Checking Accounts 1,898,268 1,610,954 

Investments (LAIF & MMA) 7,682,823 8,420,577 

  Subtotal CAC Cash & Investment 9,581,291 10,031,731 

Cash & Investments held for AIP 901,416 826,383 

Total Cash & Investment 10,482,707 10,858,114 

Assessment Receivable 4,610,542 3,210,445 

Other (Other Receivables, Prepaids and Fixed Assets) 402,479 272,829 

 Total Assets 15,495,728 14,341,388 

Liabilities & Net Reserves 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 445,925 655,011 

Due to AIP 901,416 826,383 

Other 252,692 221,398 

Total Liabilities 1,600,033 1,702,792 

  Total Revenues 11,513,286 7,498,529 

  Total Expenditures 8,030,014 9,202,375 

    YTD Surplus (Deficit) 3,483,272 (1,703,846) 

    Net Reserves-Prior Periods 10,412,423 14,342,442 

     Total Net Reserves 13,895,695 12,638,596 

    Total Liabilities & Net Reserves $15,495,728 $14,341,388 

BOARD INFORMATION



Item 3.C-2 
  

Crop Statistics 
Handlers reported 176.4 million pounds of California avocados were harvested through May 2022 with an average 
price (per pound) reported at 1.69 dollars. An estimated 34.1 million pounds were harvested in June 2022 with an 
average price (per pound) of 2.04 dollars. This would bring the total harvested through June 2022 to 210.5 million 
pounds at an average price (per pound) of 1.75 dollars.  
  
The attached year-to-date 2021-22 U.S. Aggregate Avocado Volume by Month Chart shows the actual crop 
volume for all countries of origin with prior year comparison. 
 
FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

• Not applicable 
 
BOARD OPTIONS: 

• Discussion item only 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

• Not applicable 
 
EXHIBITS / ATTACHMENTS: 

• Balance Sheet and Reserves as of June 30, 2022 
• Statement of Revenues and Expenses for the eight months ending June 30, 2022 
• 2021-22 Pounds & Dollars by Variety Report (November 2021 – May 2022) 
• 2021-22 U.S. Aggregate Avocado Volume by Month Chart (November 2021 – May 2022) 

 
 
 

 
 



Balance % Balance % Amount %
ASSETS

Cash and Short Term Investments:
Petty Cash 200                   0.00% 200                   0.00% -                    0.00%
Cash in Bank 1,898,268         12.25% 1,610,954         11.23% 287,314            17.84%
Cash in Bank-LAIF & Money Market 7,682,823         49.58% 8,420,577         58.72% (737,754)           -8.76%
   Total CAC Cash and Short Term Investmen 9,581,291         61.83% 10,031,731       69.95% (450,440)           -4.49%

Cash in Bank, LAIF & Money Market (held for A 901,416            5.82% 826,383            5.76% 75,033              9.08%

   Total Cash and Short Term Investments 10,482,707       67.65% 10,858,114       75.71% (375,407)           -3.46%

Other Current Assets:
Assessment Receivable 4,610,542         29.75% 3,210,445         22.39% 1,400,096         43.61%
Other Receivable 176,308            1.14% 4,030                0.03% 172,279            4275.40%
Prepaids 104,562            0.67% 137,245            0.96% (32,683)             -23.81%
Merchandise Shop Inventory 67,061              0.43% 30,535              0.21% 36,526              119.62%
   Total Other Current Assets 4,958,473         32.00% 3,382,255         23.58% 1,576,218         46.60%

   Total Current Assets 15,441,180       99.65% 14,240,369       99.30% 1,200,811         8.43%

Fixed Assets:
Furniture 40,436              0.26% 72,785              0.51% (32,349)             -44.44%
Land Improvements 14,112              0.09% 28,235              0.20% (14,123)             -50.02%
   Total Fixed Assets 54,548              0.35% 101,020            0.70% (46,472)             -46.00%

   Net Fixed Assets 54,548              0.35% 101,020            0.70% (46,472)             -46.00%

Total Assets 15,495,728       100.00% 14,341,388       100.00% 1,154,339         8.05%

LIABILITIES AND NET RESERVES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable & Accrued Expenses 445,925            27.87% 655,011            38.47% (209,086)           -31.92%
Due to AIP 901,416            56.34% 826,383            48.53% (75,033)             -9.08%
Other Payable (Vacation/Payroll/Sec. 125) 234,693            14.67% 200,205            11.76% 34,488              17.23%
Research Contract Payable -                    0.00% 3,194                0.19% (3,194)               0.00%
   Total Current Liabilities 1,582,033         98.88% 1,684,792         98.94% (102,759)           -6.10%

Long Term Liabilities:
Deposit Due to CDFA/AIP 18,000              1.12% 18,000              1.06% -                    0.00%
   Total Long Term Liabilities 18,000              1.12% 18,000              1.06% -                    0.00%

   Total Liabilities 1,600,033         100.00% 1,702,792         100.00% (102,759)           -6.03%

Net Reserves:
Net Reserves-Prior Periods 10,412,423       74.93% 14,342,442       113.48% (3,930,019)        -27.40%
Surplus (Deficit)-Current Period 3,483,272         25.07% (1,703,846)        -13.48% 5,187,117         -304.44%

Total Net Reserves 13,895,695       100.00% 12,638,596       100.00% 1,257,099         9.95%

Total Liabilities and Net Reserves 15,495,728       100.00% 14,341,388       100.00% 1,154,339         8.05%

Current Year Prior Year Variance

California Avocado Commission
Statement of Net Position

As of June 30, 2022 (with Comparison to Prior Year)

Item 3.C-3



Current Year Vs Prior Year
Actual % Actual % Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Change

Revenues

Assessment Revenues
CAC Assessment Revenue 6,995,536         60.8% 3,872,907         51.65% 3,122,629         80.6%
HAB Assessment Revenue 4,206,995         36.5% 3,450,784         46.02% 756,210            21.9%

Subtotal  Assessment Revenue 11,202,530       97.3% 7,323,691         97.67% 3,878,839         53.0%

Other Revenues
Admin & Accounting Fee Revenue (AIP) 40,664              0.4% 40,664              0.54% -                    0.0%
Grant Funding -                    0.0% -                    0.00% -                    0.0%
Pine Tree Ranch Crop Income 208,049            1.8% 58,905              0.79% 149,144            253.2%
Interest and Other Income 52,187              0.5% 61,809              0.82% (9,622)               -15.6%
Merch Shop Income 9,856                0.1% 13,459              0.18% (3,604)               -26.8%

Subtotal  Other Revenues 310,755            2.7% 174,838            2.33% 135,918            77.7%

Total Revenue 11,513,286       100.0% 7,498,529         100.00% 4,014,757         53.5%

Expenses

Marketing Expenses
Consumer Marketing 2,932,569         37.0% 3,714,832         40.70% 782,263            21.1%
Merchandising 886,973            11.2% 1,229,538         13.47% 342,565            27.9%
Foodservice 345,656            4.4% 354,851            3.89% 9,195                2.6%
Consumer Public Relations 579,069            7.3% 682,492            7.48% 103,424            15.2%
Consumer/Trade Living Well 104,841            1.3% 124,322            1.36% 19,482              15.7%
Marketing Activities Support 70,613              0.9% 139,951            1.53% 69,338              49.5%
Merch Shop 93,688              1.2% 74,457              0.82% (19,231)             -25.8%

Subtotal Marketing Expenses 5,013,409         63.2% 6,320,444         69.24% 1,307,035         20.7%

Non-Marketing Expenses
Industry Affairs & Production Research 462,924            5.8% 596,236            6.53% 133,311            22.4%
Grant Programs 325,075            4.1% 203,845            2.23% (121,230)           -59.5%
Administration 2,228,605         28.1% 2,081,850         22.81% (146,755)           -7.0%

Subtotal Non-Marketing Expenses 3,016,605         38.0% 2,881,930         31.57% (134,675)           -4.7%

Total Expenses 8,030,014         100.0% 9,202,374         100.00% 1,172,361         12.7%

Surplus (Deficit) 3,483,272         100.0% (1,703,846)        100.00% 5,187,117         304.4%

2021/2022 2020/2021

California Avocado Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position (Surplus/Deficit)

For the eight months ending June 30, 2022 (with Comparison to Prior Year)

Item 3.C-4



YTD YTD YTD Actual Vs YTD Budget Annual YTD Actual Vs Annual Budget
Actual % Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget

Revenues

Assessment Revenues
CAC Assessment Revenue 6,995,536      60.76% 3,923,570      3,071,966      78.30% 6,398,440      597,096         9.33%
HAB Assessment Revenue 4,206,995      36.54% 3,930,530      276,465         7.03% 5,928,750      (1,721,755)     -29.04%

Subtotal Assessment Revenue 11,202,530    97.30% 7,854,100      3,348,430      42.63% 12,327,190    (1,124,660)     -9.12%

Other Revenues
Admin & Accounting Fee Revenue (AIP) 40,664           0.35% 40,664           -                 0.00% 61,000           (20,336)          -33.34%
Grant Funding -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 475,000         (475,000)        -100.00%
Pine Tree Ranch Crop Income 208,049         1.81% 112,500         95,549           84.93% 112,500         95,549           84.93%
From The Grove Income 41,250           0.36% 32,500           8,750             26.92% 65,000           (23,750)          -36.54%
Interest and Other Income 10,937           0.09% 10,000           937                9.37% 15,000           (4,063)            -27.09%
Merchandise Shop Income 9,856             0.09% 35,747           (25,892)          -72.43% 53,621           (43,765)          -81.62%

Subtotal Other Revenues 310,755         2.70% 231,411         79,344           34.29% 782,121         (471,365)        -60.27%

Total Revenue 11,513,286    100.00% 8,085,511      3,427,774      42.39% 13,109,311    (1,596,025)     -12.17%

Expenses

Marketing Expenses
Consumer Marketing 2,932,569      36.52% 3,692,132      759,563         20.57% 5,375,000      2,442,431      45.44%
Merchandising 886,973         11.05% 1,025,162      138,189         13.48% 2,194,035      1,307,062      59.57%
Foodservice 345,656         4.30% 370,720         25,064           6.76% 772,500         426,844         55.25%
Consumer Public Relations 579,069         7.21% 564,750         (14,319)          -2.54% 785,000         205,931         26.23%
Consumer/Trade Living Well 104,841         1.31% 107,750         2,909             2.70% 145,000         40,159           27.70%
Marketing Activities Support 70,613           0.88% 69,935           (678)               -0.97% 112,500         41,887           37.23%
Merchandise Shop 93,688           1.17% 102,875         9,187             8.93% 147,330         53,642           36.41%

Subtotal Marketing Expenses 5,013,409      62.43% 5,933,324      919,915         15.50% 9,531,365      4,517,956      47.40%

Non-Marketing Expenses
Industry Affairs & Production Research 462,924         5.76% 512,703         49,778           11.34% 1,465,412      1,002,488      143.97%
Grants 325,075         4.05% 341,200         16,125           4.73% 475,000         149,925         31.56%
Administration 2,228,605      27.75% 2,361,327      132,722         5.62% 3,577,725      1,349,120      37.71%

Subtotal Non-Marketing Expense 3,016,605      37.57% 3,215,230      198,625         6.18% 5,518,137      2,501,532      45.33%

Total Expenses 8,030,014      100.00% 9,148,554      1,118,540      12.23% 15,049,502    7,019,488      46.64%

Surplus (Deficit) 3,483,272      100.00% (1,063,042)     4,546,314      -427.67% (1,940,191)     5,423,463      279.53%

California Avocado Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position (Surplus/Deficit) - Actual vs. Budget

For the eight months ending June 30, 2022 (with Comparison to Budget)

Item 3.C-5



YTD YTD YTD Actual Vs YTD Budget Annual YTD Actual Vs Annual Budget
Actual % Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget

Consumer Advertising
Media 1,532,751      19.09% 2,153,332      620,581         28.82% 3,200,000      1,667,249      52.10%
Production 149,882         1.87% 177,305         27,423           15.47% 197,305         47,423           24.04%
Online Marketing 206,066         2.57% 317,625         111,559         35.12% 411,890         205,824         49.97%
Program Administration 1,043,870      13.00% 1,043,870      -                 0.00% 1,565,805      521,935         33.33%

 Subtotal Consumer Advertising 2,932,569      36.52% 3,692,132      759,563         20.57% 5,375,000      2,442,431      45.44%

Merchandising Promotions
Trade Relations 629,215         7.84% 724,920         95,705           13.20% 1,001,500      372,285         37.17%
Retail/Consumer Promotions 98,281           1.22% 99,500           1,219             1.22% 813,835         715,554         87.92%
Data, Research & Analysis 144,826         1.80% 182,702         37,876           20.73% 293,700         148,874         50.69%
Administration & Other 14,652           0.18% 18,040           3,388             18.78% 85,000           70,348           82.76%

Subtotal Merchandising Promoti 886,973         11.05% 1,025,162      138,189         13.48% 2,194,035      1,307,062      59.57%

Foodservice
Media 63,545           0.79% 59,470           (4,075)            -6.85% 79,300           15,755           19.87%
Public Relations & Collateral Materials 31,720           0.40% 32,050           330                1.03% 56,800           25,080           44.15%
Foodservice Events 122,895         1.53% 144,800         21,905           15.13% 279,700         156,805         56.06%
Chain Promotions 104,518         1.30% 109,000         4,483             4.11% 300,700         196,183         65.24%
Education Programs 1,260             0.02% 1,400             140                10.00% 2,000             740                37.00%
Program Administration Fees 21,718           0.27% 24,000           2,282             9.51% 54,000           32,282           59.78%

    Subtotal Foodservice 345,656         4.30% 370,720         25,064           6.76% 772,500         426,844         55.25%

Consumer Public Relations
Brand Advocates 231,442         2.88% 213,250         (18,192)          -8.53% 339,800         108,358         31.89%
Public Relations 279,546         3.48% 285,700         6,154             2.15% 321,700         42,154           13.10%
Program Administration 68,081           0.85% 65,800           (2,281)            -3.47% 123,500         55,419           44.87%

    Subtotal Public Relations 579,069         7.21% 564,750         (14,319)          -2.54% 785,000         205,931         26.23%

Consumer/Trade Living Well
RDN Ambassadors 79,258           0.99% 80,050           792                0.99% 113,700         34,442           30.29%
Industry Partnerships 19,183           0.24% 21,300           2,117             9.94% 21,300           2,117             9.94%
Program Administration 6,400             0.08% 6,400             -                 0.00% 10,000           3,600             36.00%

    Subtotal Consumer/Trade Livi  104,841         1.31% 107,750         2,909             2.70% 145,000         40,159           27.70%

Marketing Activities Support
Marketing Planning 58,113           0.72% 57,435           (678)               -1.18% 87,500           29,387           33.59%
Center for Produce Safety -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00%
"Buy California" Marketing Campaign 12,500           0.16% 12,500           -                 0.00% 25,000           12,500           0.00%
Festivals -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00%

    Subtotal Marketing Activities S 70,613           0.88% 69,935           (678)               -0.97% 112,500         41,887           37.23%

Merchandise Shop
Cost of Goods Sold (1,879)            -0.02% -                 1,879             0.00% 13,000           14,879           114.45%
Expenses - Variable 8,587             0.11% 12,839           4,252             33.12% 19,275           10,688           55.45%
Expenses - Fees 86,981           1.08% 90,036           3,056             3.39% 115,055         28,074           24.40%

    Subtotal Merchandise Shop 93,688           1.17% 102,875         9,187             8.93% 147,330         53,642           36.41%

Subtotal Marketing Expenses 5,013,409      62.43% 5,933,324      919,915         15.50% 9,531,365      4,517,956      47.40%

California Avocado Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position (Surplus/Deficit) - Actual vs. Budget

For the eight months ending June 30, 2022 (with Comparison to Budget)

Item 3.C-6



YTD YTD YTD Actual Vs YTD Budget Annual YTD Actual Vs Annual Budget
Actual % Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget

Industry Affairs
AMRIC Operation 32,474           0.40% 34,750           2,276             6.55% 86,500           54,026           62.46%
Crop Forecasting & Analysis 64,394           0.80% 69,613           5,219             7.50% 145,000         80,606           55.59%
Grower Database 985                0.01% 5,000             4,015             80.31% 5,000             4,015             80.31%
Grove ID GIS Project Dmnt -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 20,000           20,000           100.00%
Online Information (Grower Web Site) 7,626             0.09% 25,100           17,474           69.62% 46,000           38,374           83.42%
Publications 61,693           0.77% 46,755           (14,938)          -31.95% 104,000         42,307           40.68%
Annual Meeting -                 0.00% 20,000           20,000           100.00% 20,000           20,000           100.00%
Annual Report 13,267           0.17% 12,000           (1,267)            -10.56% 12,000           (1,267)            -10.56%
Water Issues -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 25,000           25,000           100.00%
Field/Technical Support 20,636           0.26% 20,670           34                  0.16% 65,000           44,364           68.25%
Research Program Coordination & Outrea 64,000           0.80% 64,000           -                 0.00% 120,000         56,000           46.67%
Legislative & Regulatory Advocacy 2,838             0.04% 3,000             163                5.42% 125,000         122,163         97.73%
Product Registrations -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 4,000             4,000             100.00%
Sustainability Project 225                0.00% 250                25                  10.00% 50,000           49,775           99.55%
Elections -                 0.00% 1,000             1,000             100.00% 10,000           10,000           100.00%
Legal Support 24,273           0.30% 26,000           1,727             6.64% 40,000           15,727           39.32%
Governance Support -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 20,000           20,000           100.00%
Field Meetings, Seminars & Workshops -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 23,500           23,500           100.00%
Pine Tree Ranch Field Days -                 0.00% 675                675                100.00% 2,000             2,000             100.00%
Grower Outreach 3,509             0.04% 3,600             91                  2.52% 13,500           9,991             74.00%
Coalition Dues, Sponsorship & Reports 9,470             0.12% 10,070           600                5.96% 20,000           10,530           52.65%
Grant Writing -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 2,500             2,500             100.00%
Travel 6,922             0.09% 24,000           17,078           71.16% 40,000           33,078           82.70%
Office Expense 5,223             0.07% 10,800           5,577             51.64% 16,500           11,277           68.34%
Committee Meeting Expense -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 5,000             5,000             100.00%
Demonstration Grove
     Pine Tree - Rent 16,080           0.20% 16,080           -                 0.00% 24,384           8,304             34.06%
     Pine Tree - Grove Management 21,227           0.26% 22,200           973                4.38% 40,000           18,773           46.93%
     Pine Tree - Utilities 212                0.00% 3,600             3,388             94.12% 5,400             5,188             96.08%
     Pine Tree - Property Tax & Insurance (81)                 0.00% 1,680             1,761             104.85% 2,500             2,581             103.26%
     Pine Tree - Misc Expenses 997                0.01% 1,000             3                    0.26% 5,000             4,003             80.05%
     Pine Tree - Crop Harvesting 26,678           0.33% 13,700           (12,978)          -94.73% 16,200           (10,478)          -64.68%
     Pine Tree - Crop Hauling -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 500                500                100.00%
     Pine Tree - CAC Assessment 3,641             0.05% 1,669             (1,972)            -118.14% 1,969             (1,672)            -84.91%
     Pine Tree - HAB Assessment 3,055             0.04% 1,910             (1,145)            -59.94% 2,250             (805)               -35.77%

    Subtotal Pine Tree Demonstra  71,808           0.89% 61,839           (9,969)            -16.12% 98,203           26,395           26.88%

    Subtotal Industry Affairs 389,343         4.85% 439,122         49,778           11.34% 1,118,703      729,360         65.20%

Production Research
Proactive Mgmt of Avocado Seed and Ste   -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 50,000           50,000           100.00%
Phenology and Ecology of Avocado Lace    -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 50,845           50,845           100.00%
Commercial-Scale Field Testing of Advan  67,500           0.84% 67,500           -                 0.00% 135,000         67,500           50.00%
Safety and Efficacy of Herbicides in Beari  6,081             0.08% 6,081             -                 0.00% 10,864           4,783             44.03%
Development of Chloride Mitigation Strate -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 74,600           74,600           100.00%
PLACEHOLDER -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 25,400           25,400           100.00%

    Subtotal Production Research 73,581           0.92% 73,581           -                 0.00% 346,709         273,128         78.78%

Grants
USDA Grant-FAS MAP South Korea 174,149         2.17% 177,000         2,851             1.61% 200,000         25,851           12.93%
USDA Grant-FAS MAP China 150,926         1.88% 164,200         13,274           8.08% 275,000         124,074         45.12%

    Subtotal Grants 325,075         4.05% 341,200         16,125           4.73% 475,000         149,925         31.56%

California Avocado Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position (Surplus/Deficit) - Actual vs. Budget

For the eight months ending June 30, 2022 (with Comparison to Budget)

Item 3.C-7



YTD YTD YTD Actual Vs YTD Budget Annual YTD Actual Vs Annual Budget
Actual % Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget

Administration
Rent-Office-CAM, Ins, Prop Tax-Mauchly 94,869           1.18% 95,098           229                0.24% 142,790         47,921           33.56%
Rent-Offsite Storage 4,680             0.06% 4,680             -                 0.00% 7,137             2,457             34.43%
Corporate Insurance 88,101           1.10% 98,050           9,949             10.15% 98,050           9,949             10.15%
Office Expense, Supplies & Janitorial 12,446           0.15% 18,660           6,214             33.30% 38,835           26,389           67.95%
Utilities 5,821             0.07% 9,360             3,539             37.81% 16,540           10,719           64.81%
Bank Fees 11,504           0.14% 11,065           (439)               -3.97% 15,860           4,356             27.47%
Equip Maint. & Exp. and Capital Lease In 13,294           0.17% 17,750           4,456             25.11% 27,600           14,306           51.83%
Telephone & Postage 11,953           0.15% 19,440           7,487             38.51% 30,410           18,457           60.69%
CPA-Financial Audits 31,120           0.39% 31,500           380                1.21% 31,500           380                1.21%
CPA-Assessment Audits 1,255             0.02% 20,738           19,483           93.95% 20,738           19,483           93.95%
CDFA-Fiscal and Compliance Audit 8,500             0.11% 8,715             215                2.47% 8,715             215                2.47%
California Dept. of Food & Agriculture 53,586           0.67% 53,800           214                0.40% 76,200           22,614           29.68%
U.S. Dept. of Agriculture (AMS) 27,028           0.34% 50,400           23,372           46.37% 75,600           48,572           64.25%
Legal & Other Professional 3,752             0.05% 3,800             48                  1.26% 5,000             1,248             24.96%
Salaries/Wages 1,261,298      15.71% 1,263,000      1,702             0.13% 1,875,000      613,702         32.73%
Pension, Payroll Tax & Benefits 422,418         5.26% 438,080         15,662           3.58% 646,392         223,974         34.65%
Board Member District Meetings & Expen -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 3,000             3,000             100.00%
Board Member Entertainment -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 2,000             2,000             100.00%
Board Member Travel, Lodging, Mileage, 2,740             0.03% 3,000             260                8.68% 38,000           35,260           92.79%
Board Meeting Expenses 3,811             0.05% 23,000           19,189           83.43% 30,500           26,689           87.50%
Network Maint., Hardware, Software & Lic 34,864           0.43% 35,230           366                1.04% 48,610           13,746           28.28%
IT Support & Consulting and Other Servic 9,573             0.12% 17,920           8,347             46.58% 55,000           45,427           82.59%
Accounting & Assessment System 1,023             0.01% 1,260             237                18.81% 7,910             6,887             87.07%
Administration Staff Travel -                 0.00% 6,000             6,000             100.00% 9,000             9,000             100.00%
Depreciation Expense 30,981           0.39% 30,981           (0)                   0.00% 46,463           15,482           33.32%
Pension Admin & Legal 19,684           0.25% 25,150           5,466             21.74% 52,300           32,616           62.36%
Dues, Reg, Education, Recruitment & Oth 74,306           0.93% 74,650           344                0.46% 143,575         69,269           48.25%
Temporary Help -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 25,000           25,000           100.00%

Subtotal Administration 2,228,605      27.75% 2,361,327      132,722         5.62% 3,577,725      1,349,120      37.71%

Total Expenses 8,030,014      100.00% 9,148,554      1,118,540      12.23% 15,049,502    7,019,488      46.64%

Surplus (Deficit) 3,483,272      100.00% (1,063,042)     4,546,314      -427.67% (1,940,191)     5,423,463      279.53%

California Avocado Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position (Surplus/Deficit) - Actual vs. Budget

For the eight months ending June 30, 2022 (with Comparison to Budget)

Item 3.C-8



Month Hass
Pounds

Lamb
Pounds

Gem
Pounds

Others
Pounds

Total
Pounds

Hass
Dollars

Lamb
Dollars

Gem
Dollars

Others
Dollars

Total
Dollars

Avg
$/Lb

Nov 2021 25,432 3,582 0 73,789 102,803 $35,115 $6,113 $ $102,366 $143,594 $1.397

Dec 2021 8,018 0 26,052 34,070 $15,742 0 $ $20,361 $36,103 $1.060

Jan 2022 7,647,756 0 197,244 7,845,000 $12,056,594 0 $ $132,257 $12,188,851 $1.554

1st QTR 7,681,206 3,582 0 297,085 7,981,873 $12,107,451 $6,113 0 $254,984 $12,368,548 $1.550

Feb 2022 27,609,858 6,814 75,251 27,691,923 $43,637,363 0 $3,505 $45,425 $43,686,293 $1.578

Mar 2022 32,232,723 466,366 28,785 32,727,874 $49,531,316 0 $894,602 $14,620 $50,440,538 $1.541

Apr 2022 48,477,509 8 1,846,498 84,069 50,408,084 $83,068,347 $42 $3,755,235 $137,442 $86,961,066 $1.725

2nd QTR 108,320,090 8 2,319,678 188,105 110,827,881 $176,237,026 $42 $4,653,342 $197,487 $181,087,897 $1.634

1st Half 116,001,296 3,590 2,319,678 485,190 118,809,754 $188,344,477 $6,155 $4,653,342 $452,471 $193,456,445 $1.628

May 2022 55,596,453 1,993,131 2,973 57,592,557 $101,801,603 0 $2,695,941 $8,312 $104,505,856 $1.815

3rd QTR 55,596,453 0 1,993,131 2,973 57,592,557 $101,801,603 0 $2,695,941 $8,312 $104,505,856 $1.815

2nd Half 55,596,453 0 1,993,131 2,973 57,592,557 $101,801,603 0 $2,695,941 $8,312 $104,505,856 $1.815

Total 171,597,749 3,590 4,312,809 488,163 176,402,311 $290,146,080 $6,155 $7,349,283 $460,783 $297,962,301 $1.689

Year-to-Date
% of Crop 97.28% .00% 2.44% .28% 100.00% 97.38% .00% 2.47% .15% 100.00%

Year-to-Date
Average $/lb $1.691 $1.714 $1.704 $0.944 $1.689

CALIFORNIA AVOCADO COMMISSION
POUNDS & DOLLARS BY VARIETY

November 2021 Through May 2022

8/8/2022 
1:59:45 PM

Item 3.C-9



Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual  YTD Total YTD Total Total
Nov '20 Nov '21 Dec '20 Dec '21 Jan '21 Jan '22 Feb '21 Feb '22 Mar '21 Mar '22 Apr '21 Apr '22 May '21 May '22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

California 6.0            0.1            3.6            -            0.9            7.8            5.8            27.7          23.7          32.7          48.0          50.4          51.2          57.6          139.2       176.3        269.6        
Chile 1.0            3.0            -            1.0            -            0.7            -            3.0            -            4.0            -            1.0            -            -            1.0           12.7          4.0            
Mexico 201.0        220.0        220.0        190.0        219.0        209.3        243.0        195.3        257.0        180.0        208.0        157.0        183.0        150.0        1,531.0    1,301.6     2,337.0     
Peru -            1.0            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            1.0            1.0            6.0            1.0           8.0            176.0        
Others* 7.4            8.8            6.1            13.3          9.0            9.7            9.0            8.3            8.7            11.3          6.4            8.1            4.7            7.1            51.3         66.6          100.7        

TOTAL 215.4        232.9        229.7        204.3        228.9        227.5        257.8        234.3        289.4        228.0        262.4        217.5        239.9        220.7        1,723.5    1,565.2     2,887.3     

*  Others = Florida and Dominican Republic
** California is not final as of this report date

Source(s):  CA = California Avocado Commission
Chile = Hass Avocado Board
Mexico = Hass Avocado Board
Peru = Hass Avocado Board
Others = USDA AMS and FATUS databases

2021-22 FISCAL YEAR

U. S. AGGREGATE AVOCADO VOLUME BY MONTH
All Varieties (million lbs.)

WITH PRIOR YEAR COMPARISON

ALL VARIETIESALL VARIETIESALL VARIETIESALL VARIETIESALL VARIETIES

 -

 50.0

 100.0

 150.0

 200.0

 250.0

 300.0

 350.0

Nov '20 Nov '21 Dec '20 Dec '21 Jan '21 Jan '22 Feb '21 Feb '22 Mar '21 Mar '22 Apr '21 Apr '22 May '21 May '22

California Chile Mexico Peru Others*

Item 3.C-10



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING, AUGUST 18, 2022 
 
 

Item 3.d-1 
 

BOARD ACTION 
 
ITEM 3.d: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF FOOD SAFETY MANUAL, VERSION 5.0 
 
SUMMARY:  

In 2011 CAC developed a Food Safety Manual and launched a food safety program for growers. The 
impetus for this effort was to assist California avocado growers in preparation for the pending Food Safety 
Modernization Act’s (FSMA) requirements and in response to increasing buyer requests for food safety 
certified fruit.  

 
The first CAC Food Safety Manual primarily supported a grower’s conformance to the United States 

Department of Agriculture’s GAP audit, and in 2014, due to changing buyer requirements, CAC modified 
the Food Safety Manual to V2.0 to prepare growers for certification through a Primus Ranch audit. In 2016, 
based on input from buyers and industry members, the decision was made to modify the CAC Food Safety 
Manual to support the Global Food Safety Initiative (GFSI) standard. The CAC Food Safety Manual V3.0, 
approved by the CAC Board in November 2016, was aligned with the PrimusGFS audit (Complies with 
PrimusGFS V2.1-2). Then, in February 2019, the Board approved the CAC Food Safety Manual V4.0 to 
align with changes in the Primus GFSI audit.  

 
Currently most California avocado growers pursuing food safety certification do so through Primus. 

Over the last few months CAC staff has worked with food safety personnel from various packers to address 
evolving reporting requirements in the Primus GFSV3.2 audit. Based on input from handler audit personnel, 
updates have been incorporated into the CAC Food Safety Manual V.5 to address changes to the Primus 
GFSV3.2 audit. This CAC Food Safety Manual V5.0 will better serve California’s avocado farmers.  

 
The draft CAC Food Safety Manual V.5 for CAC Board consideration and approval can be found  at 

https://www.californiaavocadogrowers.com/sites/default/files/CAC-Food-Safety-Manual-V5.0-DRAFT.pdf 
 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 
 

• None 
 

BOARD OPTIONS: 
 

• Approve the Food Safety Manual V5.0  
• Modify the Food Safety Manual 
• Take no action 

https://www.californiaavocadogrowers.com/sites/default/files/CAC-Food-Safety-Manual-V5.0-DRAFT.pdf


Item 3.d-2 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

• Staff recommends Board approval of the Food Safety Manual V5.0  
 
EXHIBITS / ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• None 



 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING, August 18, 2022 

Item 5.d-1 

BOARD ACTION 

ITEM 5.d: CONSIDER RECOMMENDATION OF PUBLIC MEMBER FOR TERM 
COMMENCING NOVEMBER 1, 2022 

SUMMARY: 

In July 2022, Daniella Malfitano informed CAC Chairman Rob Grether that she would not be 
seeking reappointment of her seat as Public Member on the CAC Board at the end of her current term, 
October 31, 2022. CAC has publicized the availability of the Public Member position by posting information 
on the CAC web site, placing notices in various e-newsletter publications and with CDFA.   

Pursuant to CAC law, the public member is appointed by the California Secretary of Food and 
Agriculture from nominees recommended by the Commission.  To date, the following individuals have 
expressed interest in serving on the CAC Board, which are hereby presented to the Board for consideration: 

• Kel Mitchel
• Eric Lancaster

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

• Not applicable

BOARD OPTIONS: 

• Submit the name of one of the presented individuals to recommend to California Secretary of Food
and Agriculture for consideration as CAC’s Public Member for the two-year term commencing
November 1, 2022

• Take no action and continue to search for additional candidates

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

• CAC management recommends that the board review the qualifications of the individuals interested
in the Public Member position and make a recommendation to the CDFA Secretary no later than
October 2022



 
 

Item 5.d-2 
 

EXHIBITS / ATTACHMENTS:    
 

• Expression of Interest and Professional Qualifications of Kel Mitchel 
• Expression of Interest and Professional Qualifications of Eric Lancaster 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



From: Kel Mitchel
To: cac.iaf@avocado.org
Subject: Interest in Serving on Commission Board as Public Rep
Date: Wednesday, August 3, 2022 11:10:36 AM

Hello,

I'm submitting my interest in serving as a public member of the CA Avocado
Commission Board of Directors.  

My LinkedIn profile contains all of my education and work experience.  I currently am a
fellow with the agricultural leadership foundation and am very keen to explore volunteer
opportunities to ensure the longevity of CA's ag sector -- this opportunity to serve on the
Avocado Commission Board stems from that.  Furthermore, my first job in the ag sector was
on an Avocado ranch in Carpinteria, which really spurred my focus in this business.

Feel free to reach out with any questions.

Thank you,
Kel Mitchel
818 519-2027

https://www.linkedin.com/in/kelmitchel/

Item 5.d-3

mailto:kel.mitchel@gmail.com
mailto:cac.iaf@avocado.org
https://www.linkedin.com/in/kelmitchel/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/kelmitchel/


   

Contact

www.linkedin.com/in/kelmitchel
(LinkedIn)

Top Skills
Research
Geology
Environmental Science

Languages
English (Native or Bilingual)
Spanish

Certifications
Engineer In Training
Geologist-In-Training (G.I.T)

Honors-Awards
Thomas Bove Memorial Award
Estwing Prize for Mineralogy
Gregory C. Pomeroy Abstract Award
L. Austin Weeks Grant
Dean's List

Kelford (Kel) Mitchel
Project Manager at RRG — E.I.T. & G.I.T.
Bakersfield, California, United States

Summary
My work stems from my passions -- rivers and streams -- which has
led me into the pursuit of a career focused in water management and
hydrogeology.  I utilize my engineering and geology backgrounds to
create sustainable water management strategies via groundwater
recharge and water transfers at RRG for farming portfolios held in
various investment funds.  I use my people skills to solve complex,
often contentious issues related to water shortages, groundwater
legislation, and environmental issues in partnership and serving
on the board of various public agencies.  As a fellow with the CA
Agricultural Leadership Foundation, I've honed my leadership
skills to serve as an effective advocate for California's agricultural
sector through the lens of ensuring water supplies can be utilized
sustainably for the longevity of the industry.

When I'm not working, I can be found fly-fishing a river, hiking to a
high sierra lake, or travelling California in pursuit of new adventures
to learn more about our state's beauty, culture, and food.

Experience

Renewable Resources Group LLC
3 years 8 months

Project Manager
March 2020 - Present (2 years 6 months)

RRG is an investment firm focused on agriculture, food systems, water, and
renewable resources. My primary responsibilities include asset management
for water-focused investments in the Western US.

Hydrology/Geology Intern
January 2019 - March 2020 (1 year 3 months)

CALIFORNIA AGRICULTURAL LEADERSHIP FOUNDATION
Fellow
September 2021 - Present (1 year)

  Page 1 of 4 Item 5.d-4

https://www.linkedin.com/in/kelmitchel?jobid=1234&lipi=urn%3Ali%3Apage%3Ad_jobs_easyapply_pdfgenresume%3BcwAMLoM%2FQNqIu8Qn%2FlDpkQ%3D%3D&licu=urn%3Ali%3Acontrol%3Ad_jobs_easyapply_pdfgenresume-v02_profile
https://www.linkedin.com/in/kelmitchel?jobid=1234&lipi=urn%3Ali%3Apage%3Ad_jobs_easyapply_pdfgenresume%3BcwAMLoM%2FQNqIu8Qn%2FlDpkQ%3D%3D&licu=urn%3Ali%3Acontrol%3Ad_jobs_easyapply_pdfgenresume-v02_profile


   

Stanford Woods Institute for the Environment
Graduate Research Assistant
September 2019 - March 2020 (7 months)

Conduct research on DOE funded project to address the need for better
access to water data in the United States with the goal of providing insight
on specific tools or techniques where water data access may be improved.
Worked closely with one other student to conduct interviews with dozens of
stakeholders, provide status updates to funder and PI team, and collaborate
with PNNL to prepare internal report on our findings.  Started as a class
auditor in January 2019, where I presented research from that team to various
groups in Washington D.C.  I was a volunteer researcher until hired as RA in
September 2019.

EKI Environment & Water, Inc. (formerly known as Erler &
Kalinowski, Inc.)
Geologist
September 2016 - May 2018 (1 year 9 months)
Burlingame, California

Executed field investigations with portable XRF, PID, and through
groundwater, soil, and soil gas sampling.  Investigated site geology and
hydrology by logging hundreds of feet of soil core, creating contour maps of
water levels, and studying neighboring site geology.  Planned, organized,
and implemented field operations such as drilling groundwater monitoring/
production wells, bioremediation via direct injection, and soil excavation.  Used
field and analytical data to produce professional quality maps and cross-
sections, data tables, and various reports to suit the needs and requests of
clients and regulatory agencies.  Joined water resources team for SGMA
related work, providing expertise in ArcGIS and R, in geologic analyses, and in
preparation of groundwater management plans.

Colby College
2 years 9 months

Senior Admissions Fellow
September 2015 - May 2016 (9 months)

Conduct admissions interviews and information sessions, playing a vital role in
Colby’s admission process.  Present in front of groups of 5- 30 people.  Held to
the highest standard of professionalism.

Community Advisor
September 2013 - May 2016 (2 years 9 months)

  Page 2 of 4 Item 5.d-5



   

Assist freshmen living in a 100-person dorm with their adjustment into college
life, and cultivate a safe and cohesive living environment for all students.
Act as liaison between students and administration, and provide support
in situations regarding drug and alcohol abuse, mental health, and sexual
assault.

Colby College Department of Geology
Research Assistant
July 2015 - August 2015 (2 months)

Performed personal research for senior thesis project.  This included
significant field work and sample collection, and in-lab sample preparation.
Assisted advisor in two-week-long field project collecting samples and
characterizing a 200m wide mylonite zone outcrop in Eastern Maine.

Pacific Operators Offshore LLC
Geologist Intern
June 2015 - July 2015 (2 months)

Prepared diagrams to illustrate perforation sections using a borehole log.
Correlated multiple log sections for a presentation to non-geologists so that
they could understand the flow of water from injection well to producing well.
Spent significant time offshore examining casing repare projects and down-
hole camera work.

Pacific Operators Offshore LLC
Geologist Intern
June 2014 - August 2014 (3 months)
carpinteria, california

Mapped rock properties of specific sedimentary layers using Golden
Software’s Surfer 9.  Correlated logs to observe the geologic structure of
interest for future drilling and waterflood.  Diagramed existing wells and
planned new drilling locations on two offshore platforms.  Learned local
geology and observed and participated in daily oil rig operations.  Experience
with Earth Vision 3D viewer to analyze geology and well paths.

Rancho Rincon Del Mar
Exotic Fruit Pollination Specialist
July 2013 - August 2013 (2 months)

Pollinated and routinely inspected flowers of exotic fruit trees to prepare them
for optimal productivity in the growing season.  Provided Spanish-English
translation for workers and learned the basic principles of ranch management.

  Page 3 of 4 Item 5.d-6



   

UC Santa Barbara
Structural Geology Research Assistant
June 2013 - August 2013 (3 months)

Extracted minerals from 25 large rock samples, identified and analyzed
them in a Scanning Electron Microscope, and prepared them for a Mass
Spectrometer.  Streamlined work so that a graduate student could expedite his
research.

Cate School
Groundskeeper
June 2012 - August 2012 (3 months)
Cate School

Responsible for daily maintenance of campus grounds, weed clean-up,
watering plants, and landscape and building management and communicated
in Spanish daily with co-workers who spoke little to no English.

Education
Stanford University
Master of Science - MS, Environmental Engineering · (2018 - 2020)

Colby College
Bachelor of Science (BS), Geology/Earth Science and Mathematical
Sciences · (2012 - 2016)

University of Minnesota-Twin Cities
n/a, Field Camp · (2016 - 2016)

Cate School
 · (2008 - 2012)

  Page 4 of 4 Item 5.d-7



From: Eric Lancaster
To: Robert Grether; April Aymami
Subject: Application for Public Member
Date: Monday, August 15, 2022 9:17:44 PM

Hello Mr. Grether and Mrs. Aymami,

I am interested in serving as a Public Member of the California Avocado
Commission Board of Directors.

Please see my attached resume for my work history and experiences. I have been working in
agriculture for 20 years as a vendor and consultant with many crops, including fruit and nut
trees. I am passionate about agriculture and would love the opportunity to be involved on
another level.

Please feel free to reach out anytime with any questions.

Thank you,

Eric Lancaster
520-370-3532 (cell)

Item 5.d-8

mailto:eglvisionary@gmail.com
mailto:rob@gretherfarming.com
mailto:aaymami@avocado.org


Eric Lancaster
Tucson, AZ | eglvisionary@gmail.com | +[520-370-3532 | linkedin.com/in/ericlancaster

Over the past 25 years I have become the North American expert on EM Technology®.  Specialties are in soil 
health and wastewater applications. Founder and owner of TeraGanix, Inc., the exclusive distributor and 
marketing company of Effective Microorganisms® products in the continental US and Canada. Prior to selling 
the TeraGanix, I had been in charge of all sales staff, marketing, package design, compliance & registration of 
products, training of staff on product knowledge, and technical services. Worked with farmers and fertilizer 
dealers in multiple states and countries, consulting on projects in 7 countries. I was a member of the company 
board from 2005 until 2021 when we sold the company.

TeraGanix Holdings, LLC | Executive VP Product Development  Rusk, TX | 04.2021 – Present

• Managed TeraGanix’s Agriculture, Wastewater, Freshwater protocols and supported all areas of 
responsibility within a 5-person team

• Equipped TeraGanix with solutions that accelerated the bidding process on all projects
• Trained sales staff on product knowledge, sales process, and project management.
• Documented all project data.
• Trained CSRs on product knowledge.
• Created and updated product knowledge base

TeraGanix, Inc. | Executive VP                                   Alto, TX | 01.2010 – 04.2021

SUMMARY

SKILLS

Project Management 
Identify Customer Needs
Protocol Development 
Project monitoring 
Knowledge base
Agricultural Research Projects 

Value-added Leadership 
Business & IT Planning 

Cross-Functional Supervision 
Effective Communication 

Socially Responsible Leadership 
Team Engagement & Motivation

Software Tools 
Office, Google (docs, slides, sheets, etc.), Mac (pages, numbers, keynote, imovie, etc), Adobe Illustrator, 

HubSpot, 

WORKING EXPERIENCE

Item 5.d-9



• Managed TeraGanix’s Marketing and Sales, growing the company from $289,000 to $1.89M over 10-
year period

• Developed and managed research budget of $250K/year
• Developed research protocols with private entities and universities
• Managed, designed and built Tucson manufacturing site with 2 employees
• Equipped TeraGanix with solutions that accelerated the sales process on commercial sales projects
• Increased customer base from 1,000 to over 10,000.
• Engaged national distribution to retail for 6 leader products growing sales from $0 to over $250K in 

retail sales in 3 years 
• Managed all TeraGanix Social Media Accounts growing from 0 to 20K on Facebook, 0 to 3,400 on IG, 

and YouTube from 0 to 3K+ subscribers
• Wrote and published over 30 articles in various trade magazines
• Co-wrote 1 peer reviewed paper
• Wrote Marketing plan
• Co-developed and managed annual sales and marketing budgets
• Developed and managed TeraGanix website, blogs, newsletter, etc.
• Wrote manufacturing training manuals
• Trained licensed manufacturers and their sales teams
• Managed all product registrations and certifications
• Wrote full market and competitor analyses

CEMP USA, Inc. dba EM America  | Executive VP                         Alto, TX | 02.2005 – 01.2010

• Managed TeraGanix’s Marketing and Sales, growing the company from $0 to $289 over 5-year period
• Equipped TeraGanix with solutions that accelerated the sales process on commercial sales projects
• Increased customer base from 0 to 1,000
• Developed and managed TeraGanix website, started Google video and Blogger accounts
• Wrote and published over 2k blogs
• Wrote Marketing plan
• Co-developed and managed annual sales and marketing budgets
• Co-developed 1st Licensed Manufacturing model and production and training manuals
• Trained 1st licensed manufacturers and their sales teams
• Managed all product registrations and certifications
• Wrote full market and competitor analyses
• Wrote first business plan
• Co-founded EM America in 2005
• Came up with idea of EM America in 2004

Cape Cod Community College – Associates of Arts History Barnstable, MA | 1992 – 1995

• Cumulative GPA: 4.00
Bridgewater State College – Bachelor of Arts History Bridgewater, MA | 1995 – 1997

• Cumulative GPA: 3.91/4.00

Certificates

EDUCATION

Item 5.d-10



• Class IV Wastewater Management – (Massachusetts Maritime Academy)
• Certificate Digital Marketing – (Shaw Academy)

Music  
Guitar

Live music

Exercise 
Thai Chi
Qi Gong
Walking
Hiking

Gardening

Watching Series/Movies 
Enjoy Thrillers and Action

INTERESTS

Item 5.d-11



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING, August 18, 2022 

Item 6.b-1 

BOARD ACTION 

ITEM 6.b: AVOCADO BRAINSTORMING FUNDING REQUEST 

SUMMARY: 

Recently the CAC Production Research Committee received a funding request from Dr. Mary Lu 
Arpaia for the Avocado Brainstorming meeting to be held in Brisbane, Australia March 27-30, 2023, prior to 
the World Avocado Congress in Auckland, New Zealand. The Avocado Brainstorming is an invitation only 
meeting of avocado researchers from around the world with the “primary objective is to share knowledge with 
the express purpose of stimulating discussion, communication and collaboration among scientists with the 
belief that this will result in enhanced long‐term sustainability of the world avocado industry.” Upon review of 
the sponsorship levels provided the PRC recommended the Board consider supporting the Avocado 
Brainstorming at the Platinum ($10,001 - $15,000) or Titanium (>$15,000) level. 

The event coordinators have provided the attached Avocado Brainstorming proposal to assist in 
consideration of this funding request, which includes details of all sponsorship levels. Included below are the 
specific details of the PRC-recommended sponsorship levels: 

• Titanium: > $15,000 USD - Ability to send up to 3 delegates including registration. Formal
recognition at meeting; ability to provide input into program planning; copy of final sponsor report
(and in‐person or online presentation). If in‐country (AU) sponsor invitation to attend afternoon
poster sessions.

• Platinum: $10,001 ‐ $15,000 USD - Ability to send 2 delegates including registration. Formal
recognition at meeting; copy of final sponsor report. If in‐country (AU) sponsor invitation to attend
afternoon poster sessions.

Previously, CAC has supported the Avocado Brainstorming at a sponsorship level of $30,000 (2011, 
2015) and most recently $10,000 (2018). Board discussion leading up to the approval of the 2018 
sponsorship level requested Dr. Tim Spann be allowed attend the event, and that a summary report to the 
Board and industry be made following the meetings. Following the 2018 event, a financial accounting of the 
event also was provided to the Board. 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

• Any funding approved by the Board for Avocado Brainstorming will be added to the Industry Affairs
Sponsorship budget for 2022-23, which will be brought before the Board for approval in October
2022.



Item 6.b-2 

BOARD OPTIONS: 

• Approve contribution of funds for Avocado Brainstorming 2022 in an amount of the Board’s
choosing

• Take no action, thereby denying the request for funding

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

• Staff defers to the Board for consideration of this item

EXHIBITS / ATTACHMENTS: 

• Avocado Brainstorming 2022 proposal as provided by event coordinators



Avocado Brainstorming  
27 – 30 March, 2023 
Queensland Australia 

Organizing Committee: 

Mary Lu Arpaia, Co‐Chair, Organizing Committee 
University of California, Riverside, CA, USA 
Expertise: Avocado Pre‐ and Postharvest Physiology; Plant Breeding 

Elizabeth Dann, Co‐Chair, Organizing Committee 
Queensland Alliance for Agriculture and Food Innovation (QAAFI), University of Queensland, Dutton 
Park, Queensland, AU 
Expertise: Plant Pathology 

Lara Pretorius, Site Coordinator 
Queensland Alliance for Agriculture and Food Innovation (QAAFI), University of Queensland, Dutton 
Park, Queensland, AU 

Alejandro F. Barrientos‐Priego 
Universidad Autónoma Chapingo, Chapingo, Edo. de Mexico, México 
Expertise: Germplasm Conservation, Plant Genetics 

Iñaki Hormaza 
IHSM La Mayora‐CSIC, Málaga, Spain 
Expertise: Plant Genetics, Developmental Physiology 

Francisco Mena 
GAMA, Quillota, Chile 
Expertise: Cultural Management, High Density Planting, Plant Growth Regulators 

Grant Thorp 
Plant and Food Research, Mt. Albert Research Station, Aukland, NZ 
Expertise: Tree Physiology and Orchard Management 

Zelda Van Rooyen 
Westfalia Technological Services, Tzaneen, Limpopo, South Africa 
Expertise: Postharvest Biology, Plant Improvement 

Introduction 

The Avocado Brainstorming meeting had its genesis following the 1999 World Avocado Congress (Mexico) as a 
joint activity of the California Avocado Commission Production Research Committee and the University of 
California and was held in California.  Since that time meetings have been held in 2003 (California), 2007 (Chile), 
2011 (New Zealand), 2015 (Peru) and 2018 (South Africa) with continued support from the California Avocado 
Commission.  The 2018 Avocado Brainstorming was last held off‐cycle to the World Avocado Congress.  The 
original plan was to hold the following meeting in Spain in 2022.  Due to the Covid‐19 pandemic, this was not 
possible.  Following discussions with the New Zealand Avocado Growers’ Association it was decided by the 
organizing committee to hold the meeting just prior to the World Avocado Congress planned for April 2023.  

The “Report to the Sponsors” of the 2018 meeting as well as the PowerPoint presentation given at an in‐person 
presentation to the Hass Avocado Board in 2018 are attached (Appendices 1, 2).  The “Report to the Sponsors” 
includes an executive summary, the session reports, the 2018 meeting agenda and the participant list.  The 

Item 6.b-3



PowerPoint presentation includes information on the career development stage of the participants plus the 
major research interests represented at the meeting. 

Objectives and Goals 

The meeting’s primary objective is to share knowledge with the express purpose of stimulating discussion, 
communication and collaboration among scientists with the belief that this will result in enhanced long‐term 
sustainability of the world avocado industry. Research collaborations that have resulted from previous meetings 
include collaboration on rootstock breeding, collaborative work on avocado genomics, discussion on postharvest 
disorders and work on avocado water relations. 

The goals of the meeting are three‐fold: build research networks, new relationships and collaborations among 
international science groups; encourage upcoming early career scientists to make a career in avocado research; 
and discuss and share ideas about specific industrywide topics of interest that will enhance long‐term viability of 
the international industry including improved cultural and postharvest practices that optimize output while 
minimizing resource utilization.  

Meeting Plans 

The overall theme and agenda of the 2023 meeting is still under discussion.  We plan to have sessions that cover 
Market Access Issues (food safety, MRLs, fruit quality), Pest and Diseases of International Concern, Productivity 
Related Issues (precision horticulture, dealing with mega‐data sets, alternate bearing), and Advances in Avocado 
Breeding and Genetics (includes rootstock selection, germplasm conservation, genome sequencing).  Advances 
in all these areas from a holistic perspective will move our understanding of “avocado” forward and enhance the 
long‐term prospects of the world industry and provide the consumer with quality fruit which have not only high 
eating quality but optimized nutritional value. As in the past, we are anticipating 60 to 70 participants that will 
represent the breadth of major commercial producing countries that have established research programs, a mix 
of career stage (early to late career) and research interests.   

Queensland, Australia was selected as the host country for 2023 to have the meeting held in conjunction with 
the World Avocado Congress in New Zealand.  The meeting venue is currently under final review but will either 
be at a hotel on the Gold Coast (south of Brisbane) or the Sunshine Coast (north of Brisbane).  Either location 
will provide the opportunity for an industry tour for the participants on the return trip to Brisbane.  The meeting 
agenda will be modeled after the previous meetings to allow time for in‐depth discussions on focused topics and 
informal meetings facilitated around an afternoon poster session (See Appendix 1 for the 2018 agenda). We are 
also tentatively contemplating an optional half day Friday tour of research facilities at the University of 
Queensland. 

Return on the California Avocado Commission’s Investment 

The Californian avocado industry has several opportunities to benefit from supporting the world’s best avocado 
scientists, including those from California, in Australia at Avocado Brainstorming 2023: 

• University of California scientists attending Avocado Brainstorming 2023 will benefit from direct
interactions over 3 days with the world’s best avocado scientists. The international keynote speakers
and the wide range of topics covered will broaden the knowledge base of California scientists and give
them opportunities to convert international science results into recommendations relevant to local
conditions. Plus, it will provide them opportunities to develop the very best scientific approaches in their
research to provide solutions and identify new opportunities for the Californian avocado industry and
associated companies.

• The new knowledge and international collaborations that the Californian scientists will gain from
participating in Avocado Brainstorming 2023 will ensure the most effective and up‐to‐date scientific

Item 6.b-4



approaches are used when CAC and the University of California invest in avocado research and 
development, and when industry and University scientists implement this research. Better investment 
decisions will ensure better and faster outcomes for the Californian industry.  

Description on how the contribution will be used 

Avocado Brainstorming is “not‐for‐profit” and attendance is by invitation only with most participants being 
avocado scientists who would be attending the World Avocado Congress in New Zealand. These participants will 
already have paid their own travel costs to Australia/New Zealand and so CAC funding will be used to contribute 
to the meeting costs including conference venue hire, local travel and “onshore” accommodation and meal 
costs. For “non‐avocado” keynote speakers attending Avocado Brainstorming, funding from CAC will be used to 
contribute to the international travel and “onshore” costs for these people while they are in Australia. 

Amount Requested:  

The total anticipated budget is between USD $90,000 ‐ $100,000.  Meeting participants will be expected to pay a 
registration fee of $250 US Dollars.   

Hotel Accommodations and Meals  $65,000 
In‐country transportation, return trip, from Brisbane to Venue site  $5,000 
Travel – Invited Speakers (3 – 4)  $15,000 
Travel – Venue Assessment by Co‐Chairs and Site Coordinator (in country travel by Dann and 
Pretorius; international travel by Arpaia (8/22)) 

$5,000 

Miscellaneous Expenses such as supplies, name tags, drinks for tour etc.  $5,000 
Total Anticipated Expenses  $95,000 

The California Avocado Commission has been a sponsor of Avocado Brainstorming since its inception.  Funding 
has ranged from $30,000 (2011, 2015) to $10,000 (2018).  We are planning to have a tiered sponsorship 
program and request that the California Avocado Commission consider sponsorship at the Platinum or Titanium 
tier: 

Sponsorship Levels: 

Titanium: > $15,000 USD  Ability to send up to 3 delegates including registration. Formal recognition 
at meeting; ability to provide input into program planning; copy of final 
sponsor report (and in‐person or online presentation).  If in‐country (AU) 
sponsor invitation to attend afternoon poster sessions. 

Platinum: $10,001 ‐ $15,000 
USD 

Ability to send 2 delegates including registration. Formal recognition at 
meeting; copy of final sponsor report. If in‐country (AU) sponsor invitation 
to attend afternoon poster sessions. 

Gold: $5,001 ‐ $10,000 USD  Ability to send 1 delegate including registration, formal recognition at 
meeting; copy of final sponsor report. If in‐country (AU) sponsor invitation 
to attend afternoon poster sessions. 

Silver: $1,001 ‐ $5,000 USD  Ability to send 1 delegate with payment of registration fee. Formal 
recognition at meeting, copy of final sponsor report. If in‐country (AU) 
sponsor invitation to attend afternoon poster sessions. 

Bronze: < $1,000 USD  Formal recognition at meeting, copy of final sponsor report. If in‐country 
(AU) sponsor invitation to attend afternoon poster sessions. 

Item 6.b-5



Hi Tim

I realized this morning that it might have been useful to list some of the potential researchers from 
California that could attend Avocado Brainstorming:

Peggy Mauk

Patricia Manosalva

Manosalva Postdoc

CE Specialist, Plant Pathology (Akif’s replacement if on board)

Mary Lu Arpaia

Eric Focht

Mark Hoddle

CE Specialist, Entomology (Monique’s replacement if on board)

Eta Takele

Ben Faber

Ali Montazar

Eric Middleton (new Entomology advisor in SD County)

Edwin Solares (you don’t know him but he just completed a genome sequence of Gwen, we are working 
with him)

Lauren Garner

David Hedrick

Huntington Garden – don’t have a name

I know I may be missing some people but this is a potential list.  With the exception of potentially Edwin 
who has done some really exciting work on avocado, none of the individuals list above would be on the list 
where we would cover their travel, this is just the list of who we would invite.

Item 6.b-6



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING, August 18, 2022 
 
 
 

Item 7-1 

 BOARD INFORMATION 

ITEM 7: MARKETING – AUGUST 2022 DASHBOARD  
 
SUMMARY: 
 

CALIFORNIA AVOCADO COMMISSION DASHBOARD – 2021-22 AUGUST UPDATE 
• The Dashboard provides an in-depth overview of the performance of the Commission’s marketing 

programs from November 1, 2021 through July 31, 2022 highlighting activities occurring since the 
Dashboard update provided for the May Board meeting 

 
FISCAL ANALYSIS: 
 

• N/A 
 
BOARD OPTIONS: 
 

• Information only 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

• N/A 
 
EXHIBITS / ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• CAC Dashboard Update Through July 31, 2022 
 



Item 7-2



% %

Grade Size Pounds Dollars Consigned Pounds Dollars Consigned

Hass #1 Conv 40 5% 10.5 29.6 70.45$         1% 8% 13.3 9.0 42.99$        2%

48 28% 56.5 153.9 68.10$         4% 34% 59.3 38.0 43.06$        1%

60 30% 60.4 149.1 61.73$         4% 28% 49.7 24.0 37.90$        2%

70 21% 42.5 85.6 50.33$         3% 16% 28.7 10.3 29.21$        2%

84 12% 23.8 38.3 40.20$         6% 8% 14.2 3.5 24.22$        1%

Other 4% 8.0 5% 9.3

All 100% 201.7 471.1 58.39$         4% 100% 174.5 260.1 37.26$        2%

Hass #2s All 17.3 35.9 51.87$         3% 15.6 17.4 27.96$        4%

Hass Organic #1 All 20.0 57.0 71.26$         4% 16.4 36.6 55.77$        2%

% %

Region Region % Pounds Dollars Avg Lug $ Consigned Region % Pounds Dollars Avg Lug $ Consigned

EAST CENTRAL 5% 13.5 34.2 63.33$         8% 3% 5.6 2.9 37.08$        4%

NORTHEAST 4% 9.6 24.6 64.14$         2% 2% 5.1 2.6 40.34$        1%

PACIFIC 78% 192.3 444.7 57.81$         4% 82% 173.3 82.8 37.65$        2%

SOUTHEAST 4% 9.4 24.4 64.81$         2% 3% 5.7 2.5 42.87$        0%

SOUTHWEST 4% 10.6 24.6 58.13$         1% 3% 5.9 3.4 37.65$        2%

WEST CENTRAL 4% 9.8 24.8 63.21$         3% 3% 6.5 1.6 37.24$        1%

EXPORT 0% 1.2 2.8 57.52$         0% 5% 9.9 11.2 41.50$        2%

November 1, 2021 - July 31, 2022 November 1, 2020 - July 31, 2021

(millions) (millions)

California Avocado Grade and Size Distribution - This Year vs. Last Year
November 1, 2021 - July 31, 2022 November 1, 2020 - July 31, 2021

(millions) (millions)

California Avocado Region Distribution - This Year vs. Last Year
All Varieties

Size % Size %Avg Lug $ Avg Lug $

Item 7-3



Origin  Volume (MM lbs) 

Est. % 

Complete*  Volume (MM lbs) % Complete  Volume (MM lbs) % Complete

California 259                         96% 222                         70% 299                         81%

Chile 12                           120% -                          0% 4                             9%

Mexico 1,478                      60% 1,885                      82% 1,662                      77%

Peru 125 63% 116 64% 133 81%

Other 32                           213% 3                             33% 2                             40%

Total 1,906                      64% 2,226                      79% 2,100                      77%

*based on current projections

2021/22 2020/21 2019/20

U.S. Hass Avocado Supply (November-July)

Source: CAC

Item 7-4



Size Distribution and Average Lug Price
Hass #1 Conventional (November-July)

Source:  AMRIC

Size 40, 4%

$70.45

Size 48, 27%

$68.10

Size 60, 30%

$61.73

Size 70, 22%

$50.33

Size 84, 

12%
$40.20

Other, 

4%2021/22

Size 40, 

8%
$42.99

Size 48, 

34%
$43.06

Size 60, 

28%
$37.90

Size 70, 

17%
$29.21

Size 84, 

8%
$24.22

Other, 

5%

2020/21

Size 40

10%
$43.48

Size 48, 

36% $43.09

Size 60, 

27% $37.63

Size 70, 

13% $28.50

Size 84, 

7%
$22.10

Other, 

7%

2019/20

Item 7-5



Item 7-6



Item 7-7



•
•

•

•

Item 7-8



Item 7-9



•
•

•
•

Item 7-10



•
•
•
•

Item 7-11



Item 7-12



Item 7-13



Item 7-14



•
•
•
•

Item 7-15



•
•
•

Item 7-16



•
•
•

Item 7-17



•
•
•
•
•

Item 7-18



•
•
•

•
•
•
•

•
−
−

•
−
−

•
−
−

•
−
−

•
•

Item 7-19



•

•

•

Item 7-20



Item 7-21



•

•

Item 7-22



Item 7-23



Item 7-24



Item 7-25



California Avocado Month – Giveaway on 
Facebook, Instagram and in the enewsletter

California Avocado Month – Video reel featuring 
Mike Sanders posted on Facebook and Instagram

Item 7-26



Item 7-27



Supported California 
Avocado season with 
a video reel on 
Instagram and TikTok

Item 7-28



Cinco de Mayo –
featured 
CAC’s Classic 
Guacamole recipe 
video on Instagram 
and Facebook

California Avocado Month –
Facebook feature on Jamie 
Johnson; peak season – Mike 
Sanders video reel featured 
featured on Facebook

Item 7-29



Item 7-30



Item 7-31



•

•
•

Item 7-32



Item 7-33



•
•

Item 7-34



•
•

Item 7-35



•

Item 7-36



Item 7-37



•

•
•

Item 7-38



•

Item 7-39



Item 7-40



•
•

Item 7-41



Item 7-42



•

•
•
•
•

Item 7-43



•

▪

▪

▪

•

Item 7-44



•
•
•
•
•
•

Item 7-45



•
•

Item 7-46



Your shoppers anxiously anticipate the California season because of the consistent  
quality, freshness and homegrown taste of fresh California Avocados. They value the 
California dif ference and spend more when California Avocados are available. You can 
give them what they’re asking for and benef it  from California season’s higher sales 

velocity, increased dollar sales and shopper preference.

Weekly Dollar Sales
, a lift of 

nearly 1

Increased sales velocity 
of 4% means 

3

In the West, 
with a preference 

2

© 2022 California Avocado Commission. All rights reserved.

Item 7-47



•
•

Item 7-48



•
•
•
•

•

Item 7-49



•
•
•

Item 7-50



•
•

Item 7-51



•
•
•
••

•
•
•

Item 7-52



•
•
•

Item 7-53



•
•
•
•

Item 7-54



•
•
•

Item 7-55



•
•

•

Item 7-56



•
•
•

•

•

Item 7-57



•
•
•

Item 7-58



•
•
•

Item 7-59



•
•
•

Item 7-60



•
•

•

Item 7-61



•
•

•
•

•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

Item 7-62



•
•

Item 7-63



•

•

•

•
•

•

•
•

Item 7-64



•

•

•
•
•

Item 7-65



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING, August 18, 2022 
 
 
 

Item 8-1 

BOARD INFORMATION 

ITEM 8: PRODUCTION RESEARCH REPORT 
 
SUMMARY: 
 The Production Research Committee met on Wednesday July 27, 2022, via teleconference. The 
Committee considered funding requests for the 2023 Avocado Brainstorming, a proposal on overhead irrigation 
for heat mitigation in avocado groves, developing an improved avocado crop coefficient for better irrigation 
management, and continued funding for evaluation of five advanced rootstock selections from UC Riverside.     
  

Dr. Mary Lu Arpaia submitted a funding request for consideration of funding for the Avocado 
Brainstorming meeting to be held in Brisbane, Australia March 27-30, 2023, prior to the World Avocado 
Congress in Auckland, New Zealand. The Avocado Brainstorming is an invitation only meeting of avocado 
researchers from around the world with the “primary objective is to share knowledge with the express purpose of 
stimulating discussion, communication and collaboration among scientists with the belief that this will result in 
enhanced long‐term sustainability of the world avocado industry.” Previously, CAC has supported the Avocado 
Brainstorming at a sponsorship level of $30,000 (2011, 2015) and most recently $10,000 (2018). Dr. Spann 
explained to the PRC that it is difficult to pinpoint specific outcomes of the meeting that are of direct benefit to 
the California grower. However, Committee member Jim Davis put it best by explaining that it is not CAC’s duty 
to support the professional development of researchers, but it is in CAC’s interest to do so. Thus, the Committee 
recommended the Board consider supporting the Avocado Brainstorming at the Platinum ($10,001 - 
$15,000) or Titanium (>$15,000) level.  
  

Dr. Mary Lu Arpaia, Dr. Ben Faber and Mr. John Cornell submitted a proposal for funding consideration 
titled, “Can overhead water application to control temperature and humidity increase yields, tree growth and health 
in avocado orchards.” The Committee had several concerns with the proposal, including that starting the project 
with a new planting would not provide information on the effects of overhead irrigation on productivity for quite 
some time, as well as the concern that only a small subset of growers would likely have sufficient water available to 
install such a system, thus, the potential benefit to the industry was questioned. The Committee did not 
recommended funding the proposal.  
  

Next the Committee considered a funding request from Dr. Ali Montazar, UC Farm Advisor for Irrigation 
and Water Management, to expand a CDFA funded project he conducting to define the crop coefficient for 
avocado to improve irrigation management. Currently, Dr. Montazar is receiving a CDFA grant to determine the 
crop coefficient for avocados using several test sites in San Diego and Riverside Counties. This funding request of 
CAC would allow him to expand his trial sites into Ventura County to have a more representative sample California 
avocado growing areas. The Committee discussed the fact that in the recent CAC grower survey water was the 



Item 8-2 
 

number one cost for growers, and having a data derived crop coefficient for avocados would allow growers to 
improve their irrigation management and potentially directly benefit growers’ bottom line. The Committee 
recommended funding the project as requested for $217,697 for three years ($95,041 FY 2022-23).   

  
Lastly, the Committee considered a funding request from Dr. Patricia Manosalva to continue the 

evaluation of five elite rootstock selections from the UC Riverside breeding program with the goal of deciding 
whether any of the rootstocks are viable for commercial release. Starting in 2019, CAC funded Dr. Manosalva to 
establish commercial-scale trials of these five elite rootstocks across the California avocado growing regions. Those 
trials were planted in 2019, 2020, and 2021, with the earliest plantings producing their first crop in 2022. The 
Committee agreed that it is important to the industry to continue to collect yield and tree health data on these 
rootstock selections as some of these selections are showing improved salinity and/or phytophthora root rot 
tolerance compared to currently available rootstocks. The Committee recommended funding the proposal a 
slightly reduced level from what was requested for a total of $225,000 for three years ($75,000 FY 2022-
23).   
  
FISCAL ANALYSIS: 
 

• Any funding approved by the Board for the Avocado Brainstorming will be added to the Industry Affairs 
budget for 2022-23. The funding recommendations for the avocado crop coefficient and rootstock 
projects, as well as prior funding commitments, are included in the attached Proposed Production 
Research Budget for FY 2022-23 and total $270,981. All these budget items in their final form will be 
presented to the Board for approval at the October meeting.  

 
BOARD OPTIONS: 
 

• Information item only 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

• Not applicable 
 
EXHIBITS / ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Proposed Production Research Budget for FY 2022-23 



PROPOSED PRODUCTION RESEARCH BUDGET 2022‐23

Production Research Budget 

Acct Code Investigator  Project

Proposed 

2022‐23 

Budget

Reasearch ‐ Pest and Disease Projects

65131 Hoddle Phenology and Ecology of Avocado Lace Bug in Southern California $76,074

Pest and Disease Sub‐total $76,074

Research ‐ Breeding, Varieties, Genetics Projects

652xx Manosalva

Commercial‐scale field testing and potential release of five elite advanced 

rootstocks $75,000

Breeding and Genetics Sub‐total $75,000

Research ‐ Cultural Management Projects

65321 Liu

Development of Chloride Mitigation Strategies for California Avocado Groves: 

Technology Review and Treatment Prediction $24,866

653xx Montazar

Developing tools and information on crop water use and effective irrigation 

management for more profitable and sustainable avocado production $95,041

Cultural Management Sub‐total: $119,907

Annual totals: $270,981

Item 8-3


	CAC-Board-Meeting-Agenda-8-18-22-w-attendees
	Meeting Information
	Board Member Attendance
	Item
	Time
	Disclosures
	Summary Definition of Conflict of Interest

	ITEM 3.A MAY 5 BOARD MINUTES 8-22
	CAC-Board-Minutes-5-5-22-DRAFT.pdf
	GUESTS PRESENT


	ITEM 3.B MAY 19 BOARD MINUTES 8-22
	CAC-Board-Minutes-5-19-22-DRAFT.pdf
	GUESTS PRESENT


	ITEM 3.C Financial & Crop Update
	ITEM 3.D Approval of Food Safety Manual V5
	ITEM 4 PUBLIC MEMBER 8-22
	ITEM  5.d PUBLIC MEMBER 8-22
	ITEM 6.B BRAINSTORMING 8-22
	ITEM 7 MARKETING DASHBOARD 8-22
	ITEM 8 PRODUCTION RESEARCH REPORT 8-22



